
     

 

 CLEARFIELD CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA AND SUMMARY REPORT 

July 12, 2016 – POLICY SESSION 

 
Meetings of the City Council of Clearfield City may be conducted via electronic means pursuant to Utah Code Ann. 

§ 52-4-207 as amended. In such circumstances, contact will be established and maintained via electronic means and 

the meetings will be conducted pursuant to the Electronic Meetings Policy established by the City Council for 

electronic meetings.  

 

Councilmember Peterson will participate in the meeting electronically via telephone. 

 
Executive Conference Room 

55 South State Street 

Third Floor 

Clearfield, Utah 

 
6:30 P.M. WORK SESSION 

Discussion on the Interlocal Agreement with Davis School District for School Resource Officers 

Discussion on the ATK Subdivision 

Discussion on Proposed Amendments to the Sandridge Luxury Apartments Development Agreement 

 

**ADJOURN AS THE CITY COUNCIL AND IMMEDIATELY RECONVENE  

AS THE CDRA IN A WORK SESSION ** 
 

CDRA WORK SESSION 
Discussion on Proposed Amendments to the Tax Increment Participation Agreement for the  

Sandridge Luxury Apartments project 

 

 (Any items not fully addressed prior to the Policy Session will be addressed in a Work Session  

immediately following the Policy Session) 

 

City Council Chambers 

55 South State Street 

Third Floor 

Clearfield, Utah 

 

7:00 P.M. POLICY SESSION 
CALL TO ORDER:    Mayor Shepherd 

OPENING CEREMONY:   Councilmember Peterson 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:   May 24, 2016 – Work Session 

       

      May 31, 2016 – Work Session 

       

      June 28, 2016 – Policy Session 

       

SCHEDULED ITEMS: 

1. CITIZEN COMMENTS 

 

 



     

 

2. CONSIDER APPROVAL OF THE UPDATED STORM WATER MANAGEMENT 

PROGRAM (SWMP) PLAN FOR CLEARFIELD CITY 

 
 BACKGROUND: In April 2003 Clearfield City adopted a Storm Water Management Program 

(SWMP) Plan as required by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) and the Utah 

State Division of Water Quality to be in compliance with the Clean Water Act. Periodically EPA 

requires the State and cities to adopt the new updated requirements. The changes proposed in the 

updated Storm Water Management Program Plan should satisfy the new requirements of the 

Clean Water Act. Clearfield City last updated its Storm Water Management Program Plan in 

April 2011.  

 

 RECOMMENDATION: Approve the updated Storm Water Management Program Plan and 

authorize the Mayor’s signature to any necessary documents.  

 

3.  CONFIRM THE MAYOR’S APPOINTMENT OF BRUCE YOUNG AS THE CITY’S 

LIAISON TO THE DAVIS CHAMBER OF COMMERCE 

 

COMMUNICATION ITEMS: 
 Mayor’s Report 

 City Councils’ Reports 

 City Manager’s Report 

 Staffs’ Reports 

 

 

**ADJOURN AS THE CITY COUNCIL** 

 

 
 

Dated this 7
th 

day of July, 2016. 

 

/s/Nancy R. Dean, City Recorder 

 

 
The City of Clearfield, in accordance with the ‘Americans with Disabilities Act’ provides 

accommodations and auxiliary communicative aids and services for all those citizens needing assistance.  

Persons requesting these accommodations for City sponsored public meetings, service programs or events 

should call Nancy Dean at 525-2714, giving her 48-hour notice.  

 





























   

 

 

CLEARFIELD CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

6:00 P.M. WORK SESSION 

May 24, 2016 

 

PRESIDING:   Mark Shepherd  Mayor 

 

PRESENT:   Keri Benson   Councilmember 

    Kent Bush   Councilmember 

    Nike Peterson   Councilmember 

    Vern Phipps   Councilmember  

    Bruce Young   Councilmember 

 

STAFF PRESENT:  Adam Lenhard  City Manager 

    JJ Allen   Assistant City Manager  

    Stuart Williams                       City Attorney  

Scott Hodge   Public Works Director 

Spencer Brimley  Development Services Manager 

    Greg Krusi   Police Chief 

    Eric Howes   Community Services Director 

    Summer Palmer  Administrative Services Director 

    Rich Knapp   Finance Manager 

    Lee Naylor   Accountant/Budget Analyst 

    Nancy Dean   City Recorder 

    Kim Read   Deputy City Recorder 

 

VISITORS: DJ Hubler – McKinstry, Lin Alder – McKinstry, Leslie Larocque – McKinstry, 

Kathryn Murray 

 

Mayor Shepherd called the meeting to order at 6:01 p.m. 

 

DISCUSSION ON THE ANIMAL CONTROL CONTRACT WITH DAVIS COUNTY 

 

Adam Lenhard, City Manager, informed the Council that the proposed interlocal agreement with 

Davis County for animal control services would be a five year agreement, retroactive from the 

beginning of the year, and would be in place until the end of 2020. He pointed out there were 

three components to the Agreement:  

 utilization or operating costs 

 wildlife nuisance calls 

 capital projects at the facility.  

 

Councilmember Phipps arrived at 6:04 p.m. 

 

He referred the Council to Exhibit A of the Agreement and reviewed the formula used to 

calculate the City’s cost. He reported staff reviewed the agreement, which reflected an increase 

in cost, but the new agreement resulted in cities paying a more equitable share of animal control 

costs. He stated the agreement would come to the Council for approval at the next policy session 



   

 

 

scheduled for June 14, 2016. A discussion took place specific to whether the agreement and 

increase was fair to the City. Mr. Lenhard explained the agreement was a compromise from what 

the County originally proposed. He added costs would adjust every year based on utilization and 

the costs for the capital projects which were only estimates.   

 

Councilmember Bush asked if response time had been identified in the agreement. Mr. Lenhard 

stated if there were issues regarding proper response time for calls he or Chief Krusi should be 

made aware of those specific issues so they could be addressed.  

 

Councilmember Peterson asked how the City’s costs compared to other municipalities within the 

County. Mr. Lenhard responded Clearfield was second or third and pointed out obviously Layton 

City’s costs were higher because of its size and indicated Clearfield’s costs were more 

comparable to Bountiful.  

 

DISCUSSION ON THE ENERGY PERFORMANCE (MCKINSTRY) AUDIT REVIEW 

 

Eric Howes, Community Services Director, introduced the McKinstry staff to the Council and 

stated they had been working to complete an energy performance audit for some time. He shared 

a presentation regarding benefits to energy performance contracting and mentioned the City had 

opportunities for energy efficiencies given the number of systems used at the Aquatic Center and 

suggested savings recognized from energy usage could be used to help fund necessary capital 

improvements. He explained the City would need to pay upfront for new energy efficient 

equipment and use the recognized energy savings to pay for the upgrades and suggested 

borrowing the funds might be necessary. He pointed out if the recognized savings weren’t in line 

with projected estimates, the City would need to identify another revenue source for the loan 

payments. He also reviewed identified risks to McKinstry.  

 

He reported the City needed to determine how to proceed and shared options with the Council. 

He reviewed actual expenditures at the Aquatic Center and explained the proposed 

recommendations: 

 HVAC Improvements 

 Lighting Upgrades 

 Scheduling for Improvements 

 Street Light Upgrades. 

 

Mr. Howes reviewed a final project financial summary with the Council which reflected a 

proposed cost of approximately $2.56 million dollars for the complete project list and reminded 

the Council the City would be paying that amount of money one way or the other. He also 

reviewed a proposed timeline specific to the project.  DJ Hubler, McKinstry, reviewed additional 

findings and costs specific to the utility companies with the Council that suggested the energy 

performance contract should be viewed as an investment.   

 

Adam Lenhard, City Manager, requested clarification regarding the energy rate which was used 

by McKinstry in determining projected costs and savings over time. Mr. Howes emphasized the 

purpose of the discussion was to provide facts for the proposed project to the Council so it could 



   

 

 

make an informed decision. A discussion took place regarding issues of the City managing the 

street light system.  

 

Councilmember Bush moved to adjourn the work session and reconvene in a City Council 

policy session at 6:57 p.m., seconded by Councilmember Benson. All voting AYE. 
 

The work session reconvened at 8:45 p.m. 

 

Mr. Hubler reviewed the proposal. Councilmember Peterson inquired about funding and timing. 

Mr. Howes responded once the decision was made to proceed, a contract would be put in place 

and then funding would need to be recognized. Mayor Shepherd suggested bonding for this 

expense. Mr. Lenhard added the City currently hadn’t recognized the funding source for the 

projected appropriation.  

 

Councilmember Young expressed his opinion the 13 year length of financing was too long and 

mentioned he would be more comfortable with a maximum of 10 years. Mayor Shepherd 

expressed agreement with Councilmember Young’s comments and inquired about the life span 

of the proposed equipment and whether it would be beneficial. A discussion took place regarding 

the HVAC equipment.  

 

Following the discussion Mayor Shepherd proposed moving forward with the energy 

performance contract, directing staff to look into financing options.  

 

Mr. Lenhard complimented McKinstry for the audit and the information it had provided to the 

City and shared his concerns regarding the energy performance contract with the Council: 

 The objectives needed to be in line with McKinstry’s and that the identified projects were 

right for the City. 

 The suggested life span of the proposed new equipment and warranty issue. 

 He wanted the Council to understand the risk associated with purchasing the new 

equipment. 

 Pressure to make a decision based upon a timing issue. 

 Financing would be a significant hurdle. 

 Amortization schedule and making sure the projects were right and beneficial to the City. 

 The financial risk for the City if it moved forward with the project. 

 Financially, solar wasn’t a viable option to consider. 

 

Mayor Shepherd expressed his concern regarding humidity at the Aquatic Center and its long 

term damage and effect on other systems. Mr. Howes responded that humidity would be a factor 

with any system. Mr. Hubler commented a best practice would be to run the Center at fifty five 

percent relative humidity. He stated whenever “fogging” was visible it indicated one hundred 

percent measurable humidity and reported McKinstry’s test results identified humidity at 

approximately sixty percent.  

 

Mayor Shepherd suggested looking at financing options. Mr. Howes mentioned timing of the 

project in conjunction with the Aquatic Center shutdown was critical to its success.   

 



   

 

 

Councilmember Bush requested clarification whether all four proposed projects would need to be 

completed. Mr. Lenhard responded in order to recognize the proposed savings; all four 

components would need to be completed because that was how the debt service was designed.  

 

Councilmember Peterson summarized if the project was to move forward, the group of four 

projects would be accepted for completion as a “group” and the Council would need to 

determine whether this was feasible from a financing stand point. Mr. Lenhard emphasized the 

Council could remove any item it wanted; the payment for the debt just wouldn’t be recognized 

from the energy savings.  

 

Councilmember Young inquired if McKinstry’s performance guaranty included operational 

costs. Mr. Hubler clarified McKinstry guaranteed the decotherm and kilowatt hours savings 

because it knew how the equipment would operate; however, it didn’t have any control over 

Rocky Mountain Power or Questar Gas rates. He emphasized based on what it knew of current 

utility rates, McKinstry would guarantee that cost savings. He stated that was also why a utility 

cost estimator was used. JJ Allen, Assistant City Manager, clarified the maintenance costs were 

also not guaranteed.  

 

Leslie Larocque, McKinstry, suggested it might be a topic of discussion since McKinstry didn’t 

know what maintenance costs might be for the new equipment. She specifically spoke about 

McKinstry’s warranty. She emphasized McKinstry would transfer the warranties to the City 

following the one year warranty period. She added McKinstry was the design build engineer and 

would guarantee its products would work.  

 

McKinstry representatives left the meeting at 9:15 p.m. 

 

DISCUSSION ON THE PARAT TAX MASTER PLAN 

 

Mayor Shepherd proposed moving this discussion on the PARAT Tax Master Plan to the mid-

year retreat scheduled for Thursday, June 9, 2016, becasue it was getting late. The Council 

agreed to do that.  

 

DISCUSSION ON THE CLEARFIELD/LAYTON CIRCULATOR 

 

Councilmember Young inquired how the circulator route had been determined and pointed out a 

portion of the corridor in Layton was a highly traveled road compared to some streets in 

Clearfield.  

 

JJ Allen, Assistant City Manager, shared an illustration identifying the proposed circulator route 

and reviewed the history of the project as well as considered routes from the Frontrunner stations 

in both Clearfield and Layton cities. He pointed out the bus resembled a trolley car. He also 

identified key stops along the circulator route and stated the proposed route had been identified 

as the most viable. A discussion took place regarding the considered routes and stops. Mr. Allen 

mentioned the route was a 30 minute trip one direction.  

 



   

 

 

He expressed the opinion if the circulator was a regular fare bus, as UTA had proposed, it 

wouldn’t be as successful or effective as if it were offered as a free fare bus. He reported the cost 

to finance the free fare bus on an annual basis to Clearfield City was $20,000. He indicated 

commitments had been made by some entities along the route. He asked the Council if it was 

interested in participating and contributing the requested funds and a discussion followed.  

 

Councilmember Young pointed out how it worked using transportation riding Frontrunner from 

Clearfield to Salt Lake and the other modes of transportation upon arriving in Salt Lake. He 

emphasized that system was operated by UTA and believed it was interesting UTA was now 

asking Clearfield to contribute in order to offer the circulator. Councilmember Peterson 

suggested the City was being requested to help get Clearfield residents to shopping opportunities 

in Layton City. She pointed out the need for free public transportation to workforce services as 

well as Davis Hospital. Mayor Shepherd responded riders getting off Frontrunner at the 

Clearfield station were probably not from Clearfield City. A discussion continued.  

 

The Council concluded the circulator and the City’s financial commitment only benefitted 

Layton City which already had a commercial tax base. Councilmember Bush pointed out the 

difficulty with residents living in areas of the City to get to the Frontrunner station in order to use 

the circulator.  

 

The Council determined the circulator would not be beneficial or useful to its residents and 

Mayor Shepherd stated he would report the City was not interested in participating with a 

contribution at his meeting with Davis County on Wednesday, June 28, 2016.  

 

REVIEW AND DISCUSSION OF THE NEIGHBORHOOD MEETINGS 

 

Mayor Shepherd asked if the Council would like to continue with the Neighborhood Meetings. 

He reminded the Council that the meetings had been held for three consecutive years and 

inquired if the Council believed the benefit outweighed the costs. JJ Allen, Assistant City 

Manager, reported the expense to mail the post cards to residents was approximately $5,000 per 

year and a discussion took place.  

 

Adam Lenhard, City Manager, pointed out it was an opportunity to put the Council in front of 

residents and asked the Council if it desired to continue with the neighborhood meetings. He 

suggested the neighborhood meetings continue because it illustrated the Council was doing all it 

could to communicate with residents and a discussion took place regarding the “Open House” 

format and casual style of the neighborhood meetings. It was suggested the City consider using a 

City park when weather permitted.  

 

Mr. Lenhard inquired if there were items brought to the attention of the Council during the 

meetings which needed staff’s attention or follow-up and a discussion took place.  

 

Councilmember Bush shared the following where were also discussed: 

 Fix/repair items in some of the City parks as opposed to buying new. 

 Repairing sidewalks throughout the City to better accommodate residents using 

wheelchairs or scooters. 



   

 

 

 Clean up Mabey pond and add amenities. 

 Weekly “community” event in the park including a “Farmer’s Market.” 

 Hosting/sponsoring “Family Friendly” events. 

 Sweep up loose gravel following chip seal maintenance. 

 Cross walk lights at crosswalks near Clearfield High, 300 North/Barlow, 1000 

South/State Street, 800 North/250 West. 

 City Animal Control/Shelter. 

 Realigning the intersection located at 300 North/1000 West. 

 Street lights on 150 South between 725 and 1000 West and 750 North and Ann Street. 

 

Mr. Lenhard responded if any of those items were a priority to the Council it would need to 

direct staff for incorporation into the final budget. Councilmember Benson pointed out there 

were significant traffic issues regarding the crosswalk at Clearfield High and requested 

clarification regarding the crossing guards. Chief Krusi clarified the City provided crossing 

guards for elementary school students. Councilmember Benson expressed her opinion the high 

school students walking across the street at their leisure as opposed to using the crosswalk as a 

group. Mayor Shepherd expressed his opinion there were two separate issues at that location; one 

is the safety issue and the second was a traffic/timing issue which fell to UDOT. He continued 

the traffic on SR 193 impacted the traffic on 1000 East. Councilmember Benson pointed out 

generally traffic had cleared out near the stoplight. Mr. Lenhard asked about available parking on 

the school property. Mayor Shepherd and Councilmember Benson responded it was very limited 

and was always full and indicated parking at Fisher Park was a necessity and a discussion 

followed.  

 

The Council determined a need for additional help for crossing high school students along 1000 

East. Mr. Lenhard directed Rich Knapp, Finance Manager, and Scott Hodge, Public Works 

Director, to find a solution and appropriate funds in the final budget to remedy the situation. 

Councilmember Phipps suggested some coordination with the Davis School District might be 

beneficial as well. Mr. Lenhard indicated staff would visit with school officials regarding the 

City’s concern. He added Mr. Hodge had pointed out any street signalization would require a 

warrant study prior to implementation. He requested funds be appropriated for the completion of 

a warrant study and at its completion the budget could then be amended to carry out the project.  

 

REPORTS ON THE NATIONAL LEAGUE OF CITIES AND UTAH LEAGUE OF CITIES 

AND TOWNS 

 

Mayor Shepherd asked the Council if there were specific topics from the Utah League meetings 

which warranted further discussion.  

 

Councilmember Benson mentioned she and Councilmember Peterson had attended the session 

on transparency specific to live broadcasting of City Council meetings. She believed the City 

already had equipment which could be used for that purpose and suggested it wouldn’t be a 

significant expense for the camera. She reported Kaysville City’s implementation had not been a 

significant dollar amount and a discussion took place regarding computer storage, the official 

record, retention, etc. The Council directed staff to proceed with the implementation of live 

video streaming of the City Council policy sessions.  



   

 

 

 

Councilmember Bush stated he had attended session regarding social media and business 

licensing and shared information from both. Mr. Lenhard added the City had conducted a 

business survey over the past two years to gather information and JJ Allen, Assistant City 

Manager, explained how the survey was conducted.   

 

Councilmember Peterson suggested setting up a “shared” folder for photographic images owned 

by the City. She also mentioned the national convention for social media (Social Media 

Marketing World) would be taking place in San Diego and reported the video of those classes 

could be purchased for $750. She expressed her opinion that it would be a great training 

opportunity for the City.  She also mentioned incorporating some type of social strategy to the 

City’s disaster management plan. Mr. Allen asked who would need to access the shared folder of 

images. Councilmember Peterson suggested key staff or councilmembers and shared some 

examples for usage. Mr. Allen stated Marliss Scott and Natalee Flynn, Public Relations, already 

had a photo library accessible for staff and Curtis Dickson, Community Services Deputy 

Director, added Community Services had something similar. Summer Palmer, Administrative 

Services Director, inquired if Ms. Scott and Ms. Flynn paid for subscription of images and Mr. 

Lenhard responded they did. He suggested the issue would need additional conversation possibly 

in a future meeting specific to “communication.”  

 

Councilmember Phipps commented on the general session which addressed the millennial 

generation and its expectations. He reported he also attended sessions on outdoor recreation, trail 

systems specific to Farmington’s Trail Chief program which was similar to Adopt a Trail, social 

media, and Dave Church’s presentation. He indicated he had also visited with the Union Pacific 

vendor and suggested inviting her to visit with staff and the Council regarding the relationship 

between it and Freeport Center.  

 

Mayor Shepherd shared information he gained from attending the National League of Cities and 

Towns Conference and reviewed the following topics: 

 Policing in the 21
st
 Century and shared some specific statistics 

 Opioid addiction in military communities 

 The Military’s Community’s Council Meeting 

 Mayor’s Education Task Force – the new Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA) which 

replaces No Child Left Behind  

 Mayor’s Summer Learning Playbook which included ideas for encouraging children to 

continue learning throughout the summer months 

 Mayor’s Council “Tools to Thrive” program 

 Platforms from the National League encouraging attendees to contact their legislators on 

the following: 

o Reforming the Criminal Justice System 

o Protecting Municipal Bonds 

o Closing the online sales tax loophole 

 

He expressed his opinion the most significant benefit from attending the Conference was the 

interaction he and Mr. Lenhard had with representatives from the League. Mr. Lenhard 

expressed his opinion there was value in attending the Conference and pointed out the tentative 



   

 

 

budget included appropriation for one attendee to the National League Conference. He 

recommended the City continue having representation at that level. Mayor Shepherd agreed with 

Mr. Lenhard’s comments and explained the need to send an elected official in addition to a staff 

member. He added he also attended a session regarding Youth Councils which highlighted 

practices specific to successful youth city councils.  

  

 

The meeting adjourned at 10:30 p.m.  
 
        

 



   

1 

 

CLEARFIELD CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

6:00 P.M. WORK SESSION 

May 31, 2016 

 

PRESIDING:   Mark Shepherd  Mayor 

 

PRESENT:   Keri Benson   Councilmember 

    Kent Bush   Councilmember 

    Nike Peterson   Councilmember 

    Vern Phipps   Councilmember  

    Bruce Young   Councilmember 

 

STAFF PRESENT:  Adam Lenhard  City Manager 

    JJ Allen   Assistant City Manager 

    Jacob Fordham  Assistant City Attorney 

    Scott Hodge   Public Works Director 

    Greg Krusi   Police Chief 

    Eric Howes   Community Services Director 

    Summer Palmer  Administrative Services Director 

    Rich Knapp   Finance Manager 

    Nancy Dean   City Recorder 

    Kim Read   Deputy City Recorder 

 

VISITORS: Victoria McGrath – McGrath Human Resource Consulting, Lisa Eickholt – 

McGrath Human Resource Consulting 

 

Mayor Shepherd called the meeting to order at 6:03 p.m. 

 

PRESENTATION AND DISCUSSION ON THE UPDATED STORM WATER MASTER 

PLAN 

 

Scott Hodge, Public Works Director, explained the City reviewed its utility capital improvement 

plans approximately every five years and stated the new plan included a prioritized list of new 

projects including cost estimates. Mayor Shepherd asked when comparing the old and new plans 

which projects had been given a higher priority than those previously included in the old plan. 

Mr. Hodge responded the top five or six identified projects in the old plan had been completed 

and reviewed the newly identified projects in the proposed new plan and explained how they 

were prioritized: 

 Barlow Street (southern portion) 

 H Street in Freeport Center (broken into phases) 

 700 South from 1000 West to the Syracuse border 

 State Street/1100 South  

 Public Works Operations/maintenance improvement project  

 500 East from Center Street to 200 South 

 Depot Street to 350 South 

 250 North from North Main to  300 North 



   

2 

 

He mentioned although the projects had been prioritized, if another utility project was identified 

at the same location it could potentially jump to a higher priority. Councilmember Bush 

suggested giving the Mabey Pond area project a higher priority and a discussion took place. 

Adam Lenhard, City Manager, suggested staff review the three year plans to determine whether 

the prioritized identified projects needed to be reprioritized. He added a discussion for the three 

year Comprehensive Action Plan (CAP) was scheduled for Tuesday, June 9, 2016. 

Councilmember Bush also mentioned the need for the Barlow Street improvements and 

Councilmember Phipps mentioned “ponding” was still happening on the east side of the 300 

North Bridge.   

 

Councilmember Peterson arrived at 6:10 p.m. 

 

PRESENTATION AND DISCUSSION ON THE COMPENSATION PLAN STUDY 

 

Adam Lenhard, City Manager, informed the Council that he had reviewed the study submitted by 

McGrath Human Resource Group and acknowledged the complex amount of work that went into 

the study and subsequent Compensation Plan. He stated it was his goal to treat the employees 

well in addition to being fair with Clearfield taxpayers. He believed the City had exercised 

efforts within the past few years to ensure efficiency on behalf of the City employees. He 

emphasized the purpose for completion of a compensation study was to implement a system 

which was consistent as well as predictable for the employees.  

 

Dr. Victoria McGrath, McGrath Human Resources Group, shared a PowerPoint presentation 

specific to the study with the Council. Ms. McGrath reviewed the purpose and methodology of 

the Study and explained the classification system pointing out the skills, qualifications and 

education needed to perform duties of the “position.” She informed the Council the the results 

reflected employees weren’t advancing through the pay scale as they should and suggested 

employees should reach the “market” midpoint in three to five years, which was not currently the 

case with the City.  

 

Lisa Eickholt, McGrath Human Resources Group, reviewed the City’s goals for the project and 

explained the proposed general schedule sample with the Council. She reviewed specifics related 

to law enforcement turnover with the City and reviewed recommended schedules with the 

Council. She shared suggestions on how the proposed scheduled implementation could take 

place and other compensation recommendations. She summarized the following: 

 Schedules were falling out of alignment with the external market. 

 Employees were not progressing through the schedule. 

 Proposed three salary schedules which increased minimums, provided structure to reach 

market, and maintained merit. 

 

Ms. McGrath and Ms. Eickholt responded to questions from the Council related to the following: 

 Turnover in the police department 

 Advancement within the police department 

 Educational stipend for police officers 

 Implementation of getting employees to midpoint 

 Merit program 



   

3 

 

 Evaluation systems 

 

Mayor Shepherd asked about the proposed timeline for implementation. Councilmember 

Peterson asked who the point of contact was for future questions by the councilmembers once 

they reviewed the proposed plan. Mr. Lenhard requested questions should be directed to him. 

Summer Palmer, Administrative Services Director, distributed the draft results of the 

Compensation Study to members of the Council. Mayor Shepherd requested the Council review 

the Study and be prepared for future discussion during the Strategic Plan discussion on 

Thursday, June 9, at 11:00 a.m. JJ Allen, Assistant City Manager, stated final budget approval 

was scheduled for Tuesday, June 14, 2016. Mr. Lenhard requested all questions be emailed to 

him and he would send an email response including all questions with his response.   

 

 

The meeting adjourned at 8:10 p.m. 



 

1 

 

CLEARFIELD CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

7:00 P.M. POLICY SESSION 

June 28, 2016 

 

PRESIDING:   Mark Shepherd  Mayor 

 

PRESENT:   Keri Benson   Councilmember 

    Kent Bush    Councilmember 

    Nike Peterson   Councilmember 

    Vern Phipps   Councilmember 

    Bruce Young   Councilmember 

  

STAFF PRESENT:  Adam Lenhard  City Manager 

    Stuart Williams                       City Attorney  

Scott Hodge   Public Works Director 

Spencer Brimley  Development Services Manager 

    Greg Krusi   Police Chief 

    Eric Howes   Community Services Director 

    Curtis Dickson  Community Services Deputy Dir. 

    Summer Palmer  Administrative Services Director 

    Rich Knapp   Finance Manager 

    Lee Naylor   Accountant/Budget Analyst 

    Nancy Dean   City Recorder 

    Kim Read   Deputy City Recorder 

 

EXCUSED:   JJ Allen   Assistant City Manager 

 

VISITORS: Bob Bercher, Leo Leviu – Car Smart, Ilgar Kassoumov, M. Clint Bisbee, Kathryn 

Murray, Lin Alder, DJ Hubler 

 

Mayor Shepherd called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 

 

Mayor Shepherd informed the citizens present that if they would like to comment during the 

Public Hearing or Citizen Comments there were forms to fill out by the door. 

 

Councilmember Bush conducted the Opening Ceremony.  

 

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES FROM THE JUNE 14, 2016 POLICY SESSION  

 

Councilmember Bush moved to approve the minutes from the June 14, 2016 policy session 

as written, seconded by Councilmember Peterson. The motion carried upon the following 

vote: Voting AYE – Councilmembers Benson, Bush, Peterson, Phipps and Young. Voting 

NO – None. 

 

 

 



 

2 

 

 

PUBLIC HEARING TO RECEIVE COMMENT ON AMENDING THE 2015/2016 FISCAL 

YEAR BUDGET 

 

State law required a public hearing before the City Council approved amendments to the City 

budget.  Rich Knapp, Finance Manager, prepared some proposed amendments for the 2015/2016 

Fiscal Year Budget and reviewed the following with the Council: 

 The three grants received through the police department. 

 Street light audit. 

 Unanticipated engineering costs for a joint grant with Syracuse City for the possible 

future connection of 500 West and 1700 South (Antelope Drive).  

 Water overage due to issues regarding the 700 South well pump. 

 Interest expense from the General Obligation bond. 

 

Mayor Shepherd opened the public hearing at 7:07 p.m. 
 

Mayor Shepherd asked for public comments. 

 

There were no public comments.  

 

Councilmember Young moved to close the public hearing at 7:08 p.m. seconded by 

Councilmember Benson. The motion carried upon the following vote: Voting AYE – 

Councilmembers Benson, Bush, Peterson, Phipps and Young. Voting NO – None.  

 

PUBLIC HEARING ON THE AMENDED FINAL SUBDIVISION PLAT FOR CLEARFIELD 

VILLA SUBDIVISION LOT 1 LOCATED AT 555 NORTH MAIN (TINS: 14-090-0001, 14-

090-0070 and 14-090-0071) 

 

Ilgar Kassoumov was requesting an amendment to the Clearfield Villa Subdivision, Lot 1, to 

combine three lots into a single 0.3790 acre parcel of land. The sites were located at 555 North 

Main (TINS: 14-090-0001, 14-090-0070 and 14-090-0071). The properties were located in the 

C-2 (Commercial) zoning district. The Planning Commission considered the request during its 

meeting on Wednesday, June 1, 2016, and recommended approval.  
 

Spencer Brimley, Development Services Manager, shared a visual illustration of the properties 

and oriented the Council with the properties on a map and explained the request was to allow for 

the expansion of the car sales establishment at that location. He announced staff was requesting 

the fencing to separate the property from the residential property to the west. He stated there was 

also a requirement to apply for a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) for the new property.   

 

Mayor Shepherd opened the public hearing at 7:10 p.m. 
 

Mayor Shepherd asked for public comments. 

 

Mr. Kassoumov, applicant, reported he had already begun working on the landscaping at the 

property and believed it would be an improvement to the site. He explained the need to combine 



 

3 

 

the properties into one parcel would allow for better visibility and display of automobiles ready 

to be sold.   

 

Councilmember Peterson moved to close the public hearing at 7:12 p.m. seconded by 

Councilmember Young. The motion carried upon the following vote: Voting AYE – 

Councilmembers Benson, Bush, Peterson, Phipps and Young. Voting NO – None.  

  

CITIZEN COMMENTS 

 

There were no citizen comments.  

 

APPROVAL OF THE AMENDED FINAL SUBDIVISION PLAT FOR CLEARFIELD VILLA 

SUBDIVISION LOT 1 LOCATED AT 555 NORTH MAIN (TINS: 14-090-0001, 14-090-0070 

AND 14-090-0071) 
 

Councilmember Benson moved to approve the amended final subdivision plat for 

Clearfield Villa Subdivision Lot 1 located at 555 North Main (TINS: 14-090-0001, 14-090-

0070 and 14-090-0071) and authorize the Mayor’s signature to any necessary documents, 

seconded by Councilmember Peterson. The motion carried upon the following vote: Voting 

AYE – Councilmembers Benson, Bush, Peterson, Phipps and Young. Voting NO – None. 

 

APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION 2016R-13 ADOPTING AMENDMENTS TO THE 2015/2016 

FISCAL YEAR BUDGET 

 

Councilmember Bush moved to approve Resolution 2016R-13 adopting amendments to the 

2015/2016 fiscal year budget and authorize the Mayor’s signature to any necessary 

documents, seconded by Councilmember Benson. The motion carried upon the following 

vote: Voting AYE – Councilmembers Benson, Bush, Peterson, Phipps and Young. Voting 

NO – None. 

 

APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION 2016R-15 ACTING AS THE GOVERNING AUTHORITY 

OF THE NORTH DAVIS FIRE DISTRICT AND ADOPTING AND CERTIFYING ITS TAX 

RATE FOR THE 2016 TAX YEAR 

 

The Clearfield City Council acted as the governing authority for the North Davis Fire District 

(NDFD). The Administrative Control Board of the NDFD desired to adopt the certified tax rate 

of .001182 for the 2016 tax year for the purpose of funding operating expenses and capital 

improvements and to provide fire protection, emergency medical and ambulance services and 

consolidated 911 and emergency dispatch services.  

 

Councilmember Benson moved to approve Resolution 2016R-15 acting as the governing 

authority of the North Davis Fire District (NDFD) and adopting and certifying a tax rate of 

.001182 for the Fire District during the 2016 tax year and authorize the Mayor’s signature 

to any necessary documents, seconded by Councilmember Peterson. The motion carried 

upon the following vote: Voting AYE – Councilmembers Benson, Bush, Peterson, Phipps 

and Young. Voting NO – None. 

 



 

4 

 

APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION 2016R-14 AUTHORIZING AN INTERLOCAL 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN CLEARFIELD CITY AND DAVIS COUNTY FOR A UTAH 

POLLUTANT DISCHARGE ELIMINATION SYSTEM (UPDES) PERMIT 

 

As part of Clearfield City’s Utah Pollution Discharge Elimination System (UPDES) permit, the 

City determined to jointly implement portions of the storm water management plan with Davis 

County. This Interlocal Agreement enacted the limits, responsibilities and requirements for each 

party to jointly implement the Storm Water Management Plan.  
 

Scott Hodge, Public Works Director, explained every five years the state updated its storm water 

permit which identified regulations required for compliance. He stated Clearfield City was a 

member of the Davis County Coalition for storm water management and announced the “We all 

Live Downstream” campaign and subsequent commercials were part of the program.  

 

Councilmember Phipps moved to approve Resolution 2016R-14 authorizing an Interlocal 

Agreement between Clearfield City and Davis County for a Utah Pollutant Discharge 

Elimination System (UPDES) permit and authorize the Mayor’s signature to any necessary 

documents, seconded by Councilmember Young. The motion carried upon the following 

vote: Voting AYE – Councilmembers Benson, Bush, Peterson, Phipps and Young. Voting 

NO – None. 

 

APPROVAL OF THE AWARD OF BID TO PROVIDE CONSULTANT ENGINEERING 

SERVICES TO CIVIL ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS, PLLC (CEC) AND CONFIRM THE 

CITY MANAGER’S APPOINTMENT OF CEC AS THE CITY ENGINEER 

 

Proposals were received from six consultant engineering firms interested in providing 

engineering services to Clearfield City. The selection committee reviewed the qualifications, 

experience and fee structures of each firm. The top three firms were invited for a follow-up 

interview with the selection committee. Civil Engineering Consultants was recommended to be 

retained as the City’s consultant engineers.  

 

Adam Lenhard, City Manager, explained the interview process had been completed and 

evaluated the proposals and announced he was recommending remaining with CEC as the City 

Engineer. He requested the Council confirm the appointment of CEC Engineering as the City 

Engineer. 

 

Councilmember Young moved to approve the award of bid to provide consultant 

engineering services to Civil Engineering Consultants, PLLC (CEC)and confirm the City 

Manager’s appointment of CEC as the City Engineer and authorize the Mayor’s signature 

to any necessary documents, seconded by Councilmember Bush. The motion carried upon 

the following vote: Voting AYE – Councilmembers Benson, Bush, Peterson, Phipps and 

Young. Voting NO – None. 
 

 

 

 

 



 

5 

 

APPROVAL OF THE AWARD OF BID FOR CONSTABLE SERVICES  

 

The current contract for constable services would end on June 30, 2016. The City recently 

completed an RFP (Request for Proposals) process and only one proposal was submitted  by 

Court Services of Utah, the City’s current provider.   

 

Councilmember Benson moved to approve the award of bid for constable services to Court 

Services of Utah and authorize the Mayor’s signature to any necessary documents, 

seconded by Councilmember Peterson. The motion carried upon the following vote: Voting 

AYE – Councilmembers Benson, Bush, Peterson, Phipps and Young. Voting NO – None. 

 

APPROVAL OF THE ENERGY SAVINGS CONTRACT WITH MCKINSTRY 

 

The City had been working with its Energy Savings Contract (ESCO) partner, McKinstry, to 

develop a scope of work to upgrade the lighting at City Hall, the Aquatic and Fitness Center and 

the streetlights within the City to LEDs. The savings from the projects would be used to replace 

the HVAC system at the Aquatic and Fitness Center. City staff was recommending approving the 

lighting upgrades and the HVAC replacement, and to begin the construction phase pending the 

Legal Department’s review of the contract.  

 

Eric Howes, Community Services Director, reminded the Council that staff had been working 

with McKinstry for almost two years on evaluating equipment at City facilities specific to energy 

performance. He clarified the proposal was to upgrade equipment or systems which would use 

less energy and use the savings to pay for upgrades. He reported it had been narrowed down to 

the HVAC system at the Aquatic Center, lighting at City facilities and street light conversion. He 

stated staff was recommending the Council approve the contract with McKinstry for the HVAC 

and the lighting as it had been presented, pending legal review of the contract. He mentioned 

ordering the new equipment was time sensitive to allow completion of work in the current season 

and indicated if there were major concerns with the process; approval for those could come 

before the Council at a later date.  

 

Councilmember Phipps pointed out there was no costs associated with the contract. Mr. Howes 

responded the City would need to borrow for the expenditure and the energy savings would be 

used to make the loan payments; therefore, the costs to the City were neutral. He requested 

clarification there was no dollar value associated with the contract. Adam Lenhard, City 

Manager, explained the Council would be required to approve any debt incurred if the City 

proceeded with the executing the contract. Councilmember Phipps suggested the motion include 

language explicitly providing the authority to staff for making inconsequential changes without 

Council’s approval during a future meeting.  

 

Mayor Shepherd clarified timing associated with the debt and escalation would also be 

considered. Mr. Howes responded a one percent rate increase would be applicable to both the 

electrical and natural gas rates.  

 

Councilmember Peterson moved to approve the Energy Savings Contract with McKinstry 

for lighting upgrades, the HVAC replacement and to begin the construction phase pending 



 

6 

 

the Legal Department’s review of the contract, authorizing staff to make necessary, 

inconsequential modifications to the contract and authorize the Mayor’s signature to any 

necessary documents, seconded by Councilmember Benson. The motion carried upon the 

following vote: Voting AYE – Councilmembers Benson, Bush, Peterson, Phipps and Young. 

Voting NO – None. 

 

APPROVAL OF A PROCLAMATION DECLARING THE WEEK OF JULY 1 – JULY 7, 2016 

AS INDEPENDENTS WEEK IN CLEARFIELD CITY  
 

Clearfield’s core of independently-owned businesses gives back to the community in goods, 

services, time and talent. Additionally the health of Clearfield’s economy depends on support of 

businesses owned by friends and neighbors. Local business owners and their employees enrich 

residents’ shopping experiences with their knowledge and reflect a sense of place.  The 

proclamation was a salute to community members and locally owned independent businesses 

that were integral to Clearfield.  

 

Mayor Shepherd read the proclamation.  

  

Councilmember Phips inquired if there would be any advertising associated with the 

proclamation. Mayor Shepherd responded it would be highlighted in the City’s newsletter as well 

as social media posts. Adam Lenhard, City Manager, pointed out the proclamation was a 

partnership with Buy Local First Utah which would also be advertising Independents Week.    

 

Councilmember Young moved to approve the Mayor’s signature to the Proclamation 

officially declaring July 1-July 7, 2016 as “Independents Week” in the City of Clearfield, 

seconded by Councilmember Peterson. The motion carried upon the following vote: Voting 

AYE – Councilmembers Benson, Bush, Peterson, Phipps and Young. Voting NO – None. 

 

COMMUNICATION ITEMS 
 

Mayor Shepherd 
1. Announced the Air Show had been a phenomenal success. He praised UDOT and UTA for their 

efforts in getting people to and from the event. He announced Sunday was the largest day for attendance. 

He informed the Council that General Leavy from Tinker Air Force Base was in attendance to participate 

in the air show and change of command. He mentioned Colonel Jolley’s change of command took place 

earlier in the day and spoke of his accomplishments.     

2. Mentioned the demolition of the buildings across the street from City Hall.  

3. Expressed appreciation to staff for the City summer party.  

4. Looking forward to a great Fourth of July celebration.  

 

Councilmember Benson  
1. Reported auditions for the “We’ve Got Talent” talent show had resulted in 12 acts moving on to 

perform in the final competition round on Monday, July 4, 2016, at 6:00 p.m., in conjunction with the 

Fourth of July celebration.  

   

 

 

 



 

7 

 

Councilmember Bush 
1. Informed the Council that he had attended the Weber Basin Water Tour on Wednesday, June 15, 

2016 which included the Smith & Morehouse reservoir. He mentioned that reservoir was the first 

reservoir and was located at the highest elevation which allowed the system to benefit from the gravity 

flow.  

2.   Reported approximately 150 people attended the North Davis Sewer District’s (NDSD) open 

house which took place on Friday, June 17, 2016. He announced the recently installed new equipment 

was operational and it was anticipated the equipment would be in use until 2030. He mentioned there was 

room for expansion as needed based on population.  

3.  Announced he had attended an awards ceremony on Wednesday, June 22, 2016, at which time the 

NDSD received an award from OSHA (Occupational Safety and Health Administration). He 

complimented the facility for the way in which it operated.  

4.  Stated he had attended lunch at Chancellor Gardens and invited the other councilmembers to the 

luncheon on Wednesday, July 13, 2016, its annual barbeque.   

5. Reported he would be attending the Wasatch Choice 2050 Consortium in Salt Lake later in the 

week.  

6. Reminded the Council of the Sunday event, July 3, 2016, 7:30 p.m., in conjunction with the 

Fourth of July festivities on the front steps of City Hall.   

  

Councilmember Peterson  
1. Announced the graduation for participants of the “Circles” program, designed to help break the 

cycle of poverty, was planned for Thursday, June 30, 2016.  

2. Expressed appreciation to staff of the Community Development regarding their efforts with the 

groundbreaking of the new Antelope Elementary parking lot.    

 

Councilmember Phipps  
1. Informed the Council that Wasatch Integrated hadn’t met.  

2.  Announced he would be out of town the week of July 12, 2016 and August 2, 2016.  

  

Councilmember Young 
1.  Expressed his opinion the Air Show was great.  

2.  Wished everyone a Happy Fourth of July.  

 

STAFF REPORTS 
 

Adam Lenhard, City Manager – mentioned staff working on the Fourth of July would be flexing time 

during the remainder of that week.      

 

Nancy Dean, City Recorder – Reviewed the Council’s calendar: 

 No meeting scheduled for Tuesday, July 5, 2016 

 Meetings on July 12 and July 26 

 Night against Crime on Tuesday, August 2, 2016 

 

 

There being no further business to come before the Council, Councilmember Benson       

moved to adjourn at 7:45 p.m., seconded by Councilmember Peterson. Voting AYE – 

Councilmembers Benson, Bush, Peterson, Phipps and Young. Voting NO – None.  

 

 

 





 

 

 

CLEARFIELD CITY STORM WATER 
MANAGEMENT PLAN 

 

 

Drafted April, 2003 

Updated March, 2011 

Updated July, 2016 
 



Clearfield City Storm Water Management Plan 2016  

INTRODUCTION 
 
The development and implementation of the Storm Water Management Plan (SWMP) 
is intended to reduce pollutants entering valuable water sources and to fulfill 
requirements under the State of Utah UPDES permit No. UTS00001: Authorization to 
discharge Municipal Storm Water, Section II, in accordance with Section 402(p) (3) (B) 
of the Federal Clean Water Act, and the State Storm Water Regulations (UCAC R317-
8-3.9). 
Polluted storm water runoff is often transported to municipal separate storm sewer 
systems (MS4s) and ultimately discharged into local rivers and streams without 
treatment.  EPA’s Storm Water Phase II Rule establishes an MS4 storm water 
management program that is intended to improve the Nation’s waterways by reducing 
the quantity of pollutants that are introduced into storm sewer systems during storm 
events.  Common pollutants include oil and grease from roadways, roadway salts and 
deicing materials, pesticides and fertilizers from lawns, sediment from construction 
sites, and carelessly discarded trash, such as cigarette butts, paper wrappers, and 
plastic bottles.  When deposited into nearby waterways through MS4 discharges, these 
pollutants can impair the waterways, thereby discouraging use of the resource, 
contaminating water supplies, and interfering with the habitat for fish, other aquatic 
organisms, and wildlife. 
 
In 1990, EPA promulgated rules establishing Phase I of the National Pollutant 
Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) storm water program.   The Phase I program 
for MS4s requires operators of “medium” and “large” MS4s, that is, those that generally 
serve populations of 100,000 or greater, to implement a storm water management 
program as a means to control polluted discharges from these MS4s.  The Storm Water 
Phase II Rule extends coverage of the NPDES storm water program to certain “small” 
MS4s but takes a slightly different approach to how the storm water management 
program is developed and implemented. 
 
Storm Water Management Program 
 
A Storm Water Management Program should: 
 

 Reduce the discharge of pollutants to the “maximum extent practicable” (MEP); 
 
 Protect water quality;  
 
 Satisfy the appropriate water quality requirements of the Clean Water Act; and 
 
 Be phased in over a five year period. 
 

Storm water management programs must include: 
 



Clearfield City Storm Water Management Plan 2016  

 Best Management Practices (BMPs) for each of the six minimum control 
measures; 

  
1. Public Education and Outreach 

 
2. Public Participation/Involvement 

 
3. Illicit Discharge Detection and Elimination 

 
4. Construction Site Runoff Control 

 
5. Post-Construction Runoff Control 

 
6. Pollution Prevention/Good Housekeeping 

 
 Measurable goals for each minimum control measure (i.e., narrative or numeric 

standards used to gauge program effectiveness); 
 

 Estimated months and years in which actions to implement each measure will be 
undertaken, including interim milestones and frequency; and 
 

 The person or persons responsible for implementing or coordinating the storm 
water program. 

 
Permit Application and Notice of Intent 
Phase II Rule encourages the development of a storm water management program by 
requiring a Notice of Intent (NOI) describing the storm water management program to 
be submitted to the NPDES permitting authority.  The Notice of Intent becomes the 
permit application. 
 
Cities required to obtain a permit under Phase II are allowed to cooperate and work 
together with neighboring cities in the application process.  The permittee may join with 
a Phase I city or another Phase II city in applying for a permit.  The individual MS4s 
may share responsibility for program development with neighboring communities and/or 
take advantage of existing local or state programs.  
 
Co-Permittee Identification and Coordination 
 
Clearfield City has applied for Permit UTS00001 as a co-permittee with Davis County. 
Accountability for each BMP is identified under its section.  Appendix – F includes the 
Interlocal Cooperation Agreement between County and City and the co-permit 
requirement accountability document defining the county’s responsibilities in regard to 
the implementation of the permit requirements. 
 
 
Permit Requirements 



Clearfield City Storm Water Management Plan 2016  

 
The chosen measurable goals, submitted in the Notice of Intent as a permit application, 
become the required storm water management program; however, the NPDES 
permitting authority can require changes in the mix of chosen BMPs and measurable 
goals if all or some of them are found to be inconsistent with the provisions of the 
Phase II Final Rule.  Likewise, the permittee can change its mix of BMPs if it 
determines that the program is not effective as it could be. 
 

Reports 
The permit requires that the city review the SWMP annually, report on our activities 
and make any updates that might be required. The annual reports should use the 
form provided by the State. Generally, the annual report should include the following 
information: 
 
 The status of compliance with permit conditions, including an assessment of 

the appropriateness of the selected BMPs and progress toward achieving the 
selected measurable goals for each minimum measure; 

 
 Results of any information collected and analyzed, including monitoring data if 

any; 
 

 A summary of the storm water activities planned for the next reporting cycle; 
 

 A change in any identified BMP or measurable goals for any minimum 
measure; and 
 

 Notice of relying on another governmental entity to satisfy some of the permit 
obligations (if applicable). 

 
Record Keeping 
Records required by the NPDES permitting authority must be kept for at least 5 
years and made accessible to the public at reasonable times during regular 
business hours.  Records need not be submitted to the NPDES permitting authority 
unless the Permittee is requested to do so. 
 

     Deadlines 
 
The following deadlines are included in this permit 
 

Date Description 
July 1, 2016 Updated SWMP document summited to the State.  

August 1, 2016 Updated SWMP on city web site, for public to view.  

September 1, 2016 Have SWPPP for all permittees owned high priority facilities. 

December 1, 2016 LID program implemented into the city standards. 



Clearfield City Storm Water Management Plan 2016  

 
Penalties 
The NPDES permit that the operator of a regulated small MS4 is required to obtain 
is federally enforceable, thus subjecting the Permittee to potential enforcement 
actions and penalties by the NPDES permitting authority if the permittee does not 
fully comply with application or permit requirements.  This federal enforceability also 
includes the right for interested parties to sue under citizen suit provision (section 
405) of CWA. 
 

     This document contains a description of the community-specific Storm Water                                 
     Management Program for Clearfield City. The Program includes the following; 
 
 Best Management Practices (BMPs) for each of the six minimum control 

measures; 
  

1. Public Education and Outreach 
 

2. Public Participation/Involvement 
 

3. Illicit Discharge Detection and Elimination 
 

4. Construction Site Runoff Control 
 

5. Post-Construction Runoff Control 
 

6. Pollution Prevention/Good Housekeeping 
 

 Measurable goals for each minimum control measure (i.e., narrative or numeric 
standards used to gauge program effectiveness); 
 

 Estimated months and years in which actions to implement each measure will be 
undertaken, including interim milestones and frequency; and 
 

 The person or persons responsible for implementing or coordinating the storm 
water program. 
 
 
This document also contains the following information and documentation in its 
appendices: 

                  
 

 Appendix A – Davis County Coalition documentation plan / Low-Impact           
development techniques / Weekly visual inspection / Pre-Construction           
Review / Special environmental considerations / Maintenance agreement 
&  arrangements / Hydrologic   methods and design standards / UPDES  
storm water inspection evaluation form / (BMPs) Design details. 
 



Clearfield City Storm Water Management Plan 2016  

 Appendix B – Inspection checklist / Pre-Construction review / Permittee 
– Owner facilities evaluation form / City owned facilities inventory / Notice 
of termination process / List of Standard Operating Procedures (SOP’s). 
 

 Appendix C – Best Management Practices (BMP’s) detail sheets / 
Construction site sign / Construction site enforcement log / Davis County 
IDDE MOU / Illicit discharge inspection report / spill response report form / 
IDDE, incoming call report form / Incident response flow chart / Dry 
weather screening checklist / Dry weather discharge form. 
 

 Appendix D – Minimum control measures documentation process / 
Preconstruction review / Construction site enforcement log. 
 

 Appendix E – Clearfield City storm water utility ordinance / Clearfield City 
drainage ordinance / Clearfield City storm water construction activity 
permit ordinance / IDDE ordinance / Checklist for LID handbook / Low 
Impact development handbook, LID Ordinance / Small scale residential 
prescriptive measures. 

 
 Appendix F – State permits MS4s permit, Construction permit and CPD 

permit/ Interlocal cooperation agreement between Davis County Cities 
and Davis County UPDES general permit. 
 

 Appendix G – System maps and City owned facility inventory.  
 
Clearfield City characteristics 
 
General Information 
The Clearfield City Storm Drain System falls under the Public Works Department for the 
City.  The Public Works Director can be contacted at the following address and phone 
number: 
           

Public Works Facility 
497 South Main  
Clearfield, Utah 84015 

 (801) 525 - 4430 
 
Some general information for Clearfield City follows: 
 

Population: 30,467 
Size: 7.5 sq. miles 

 
 
 

  Geographic Description: Elevation 4500 ft. 



Clearfield City Storm Water Management Plan 2016  

Receiving Waters: Most of Clearfield drains into pipes & ditches, which 
empty into the Great Salt Lake. 

Annual Precipitation: 18.4” 
Type of Community: A small city that is nearing build-out 

Latitude: 41”06’ degrees N 
Longitude: 112”01’ degrees W 

 

 

SWMP Coordination  

Agency: Clearfield City, Public Works Department  

Contacts: Scott Hodge, Public Works Director: Phone 801-525-4430                                   
Daniel Schuler, Storm Water Manager/Public Works Inspector: Phone 801-525-4404  

Plan Management  

Clearfield City is a local government governed by the Mayor and City Council. The 
Mayor and City Council are responsible for budgeting and policy decisions. The 
City Manager is responsible for the day to day operations of the City under the 
direction of the Mayor.  

Current Legal Authority to Control Storm Water Discharge  
 
Ordinance            Storm sewer utility regulations, Title 8 Section 4 
                             Storm Drainage Title 9 Section 5 
                             Site Plan Review Standards Title 11 Chapter 5 
                             Subdivision Development Title 12 
            
 Standards           Standard Specifications and Plans, Dated July 2008 
 
 
The Clearfield storm water system consists of curb and gutter, inlet boxes, piping, 
and a few typical open channel sections, swales and canals. There are a few 
detention basins that exist within the system.  Most of the streets use curb and 
gutter to collect storm water runoff. The city is served by a sanitary sewer system 
that is treated at the North Davis Sewer District. All new developments are required 
to connect to the public sanitary sewer system.  
 
 
 
 



Clearfield City Storm Water Management Plan 2016  

History of Clearfield City 

Clearfield, in northern Davis County, is bordered by Hill Air Force Base and the 
Wasatch Mountains on the east, and by Syracuse, West Point, and Great Salt 
Lake on the west. Clearfield was once known as "Sand ridge." There was little 
available water and the land was thought to be unproductive. The name was 
later changed to Clearfield from the suggestion of a teacher, who got the idea 
as she looked out over the attractive open surroundings. 

Clearfield was settled in 1877, starting with a dugout with a thatched roof of 
sagebrush covered with dirt. After the completion of the East Canyon Dam in 
1884, water was supplied by the Davis and Weber counties canal. This brought 
more people to the area to live and to grow crops. Most settled in the area that 
is now Syracuse.     

In 1869 the Utah Central Railroad came through Clearfield. In 1905 the 
Bamberger Electric, another railroad, took passengers between Ogden and Salt 
Lake City, stopping in Clearfield. By 1940 alfalfa fields and forage crops were 
abundant and Clearfield was a peaceful farming community. However, the 
addition of defense installations in the area changed the scene. The efforts of 
the Ogden Chamber of Commerce helped bring Hill Field to Utah. The 
construction of the Air Force base began in 1940 and the facility eventually 
stretched along the eastern border of Clearfield. The base has provided many 
jobs for civilians and is one of Utah's major employers. On the southwestern 
side of Clearfield, the U.S. Navy installed the Clearfield Naval Supply Depot. 
Clearfield was considered a prime location for the depot because of its relative 
security from enemy attack, nearby air transportation at Hill Air Force Base, and 
the proximity of railroads and highways. The dry climate was ideal for storage, 
and there was a good supply of manpower. The depot was phased out by 1962. 
The facility did not stay empty long; private firms soon began moving into the 
large warehouse buildings. The area became known as the Freeport Center 
and today is a major western hub for manufacturing, warehousing, and 
distribution. 

Clearfield is an active community as part of the greater Wasatch Front community. 
Residents are still employed in farming, defense, and manufacturing, as well as in 
running local restaurants and businesses. The building of Interstate 15 has made it 
convenient for residents to commute to Ogden and Salt Lake City for work as well as 
cultural and higher education needs. 
 
 
 
 



Clearfield City Storm Water Management Plan 2016  

 
Local Water Quality Concerns 

The water quality within the city of Clearfield is relatively good. None of the streams or  
waterways has been identified as protected under Section 303(d) of the Clean Water 
Act. The hope and intent of this Strom Water Management program (SWMP) is to 
maintain that status and possibly even improve the current water quality. The storm 
water in Clearfield City drains into a few locations, which finally empty in to the  
Great Salt Lake. City outfalls consist of large pipelines discharging into west Layton, 
Syracuse, and the county-wide drainage that traverses through West Point. 
Agreements are in place with both Layton and Syracuse to accept a defined amount 
of Clearfield's storm water.  Like most communities along the Wasatch Front, some of 
the biggest concerns involve sediment loads (coming primarily from disturbed sites), 
trash, oils and grease coming from the roadways and improper disposal and 
application of household chemicals and waste materials. One concern unique to 
Clearfield City is a possible chemical spill at the Freeport Center.  

The downtown area in Clearfield has been well established for many years and 
contains several businesses and commercial sites. Clearfield's SWMP has been 
geared toward improving the city's current practices and better education of the 
general public about the impact they can have on water quality within the community. 
 
 
 
Ongoing Documentation Process 
With this revised SWMP our program has been restructured.  The SWMP itself has 
been reorganized to make it more of a working document with multiple appendices to 
help the city do a better job in record keeping and documenting our activities.  Much of 
the documentation is or will be included in Appendix D.  As part of this update, the city 
has reviewed existing BMPs and measureable goals and assessed them for their 
effectiveness and contribution in helping us achieve our desired results.  We have 
completed evaluation worksheets to document our review and our assessment of our 
current program.  These evaluation sheets are found in Appendix D.  The State’s 
updated permit and this evaluation provided the foundation for this update.  We have 
tried to build off of the positive things that have been accomplished and renewed our 
commitment to improve in areas where our program has been lacking.  We feel the 
revised program is more focused. 
 
Our plan is to document our activities and to keep better track of what is happening 
within our community.  This updated SWMP includes many new forms and reports to 
help us in these documentation efforts.  Report forms, logs, evaluation forms and 
backup information is spread throughout the applicable appendices.    





Clearfield City Storm Water Management Plan 2016  

City Manager 
• Liaison between staff and City Council 
• General coordination of the Storm Water Pollution Prevention Program 

 
Public Works Director 

• Liaison between staff and City Council 
• General coordination of the Storm Water Pollution Prevention Program 
• Updating SWMP 

 
Community Service Director 

• Liaison with CIM Administration and City Council 
• General coordination of the Storm Water Pollution Prevention Program 

 
Storm Water Manager/Public works Inspector/Fleet Superintendent 

• Oversee Storm Water Program specifics and works with department heads 
• Responsible for shared facilities and general work areas including: 

• Storm drain system maintenance/cleaning 
• General BMP maintenance 

• Annual storm water report 
• Updating SWMP/SWPPP 
• Coordination with Public Works Director 
• Tracking and documentation of activities and actions 
• Storm Drain mapping 
• Training fleet I City personnel 
• Storm Water Inspector I Reviewer 

 
Water Department Superintendent 

• Water maintenance work area 
• Training water personnel 
• Chemical storage in work area 
• Water equipment operation 
• Annual water report 

 
Streets Department Superintendent 

• Street maintenance work area 
• Street equipment operation 
• Training streets dept. personnel 
• Snow plowing program 
• Street sweeping program 
• Salt and materials storage stockpile areas 

 
Parks and Open Space Manager 

• Parks dept. maintenance work area 
• Pesticide, Herbicide, and Fertilizer (PHF) program 
• Training parks personnel 
• Chemical and fertilizer storage in work area 
• Parks department equipment operation 

 



Clearfield City Storm Water Management Plan 2016  

Fleet I Master Mechanics 
• Equipment maintenance for Parks dept. 
• Equipment maintenance for Streets dept. 
• Equipment maintenance for Water dept. 
• Equipment maintenance for Police/Fire 
• Fleet dept. maintenance work area 
• Chemicals, fluids, and oils in work area, waste oils/fluids 
• Metal fabrication area 



                                                
                                              

Clearfield City Storm Water Management Plan 2016  
 

Davis County Coalition  
The City will continue to attend the monthly coalition meetings and work with the 
Coalition on improving the public education and outreach program. 

 
Plan and Implementation Measures 
In order to help meet the goals and objectives of this SWMP, Clearfield City has chosen 
to adopt the following BMPs.  Each BMP is cross referenced alphabetically by code in 
the indicated appendix to a fact sheet that describes the BMP, its applicability, its 
limitations, and its effectiveness.  Only those BMPs listed below will be utilized by 
Clearfield City as part of their SWMP at the present time. 
 
 
 

BMP Code Appendix 
Classroom Education On Storm Water CESW C 

Educational Materials EM C 

Employee Training ET C 

Public Education/ Participation PEP C 

Using Media UM C 
 
The Public Education and outreach program of Clearfield City’s Storm Water 
Management Plan increases public awareness of storm water pollution, informs public 
of storm water laws, and lists Best Management Practices (BMP’s) the public may use 
to minimize pollution. 
Clearfield City is a member of the Davis County Storm Water Coalition and in 
accordance with the interlocal cooperation agreement between Davis County and 
Clearfield City and Co-permit requirement accountability, portions of Clearfield City’s 
Public Education and Outreach Program control measures will be implemented by the 
Davis County Coalition. 
The programs for this section are summarized in Table 1.1 and additional program 
documents are included in attachments.  
 

Goals 

In order to more fully realize the benefit of the BMP the city has set the following goals.  
The goals set along with the existing efforts fulfill the requirements of the Final Storm 
Water Phase II Rule for Education and Outreach.   
 
The following table includes the goals for Minimum Control Measure (MCM) 1. 















                                                
                                              

Clearfield City Storm Water Management Plan 2016  
 

Contact Person 
For questions or input on the SWMP located on the city website please contact  
Daniel Schuler – Public Works Inspector/Storm Water Manager at 801-525-4404 (office) or 
dschuler@clearfieldcity.org  
 
 
Plan and Implementation Measures 
In order to help meet the goals and objectives of this SWMP, Clearfield City has chosen 
to adopt the following BMPs for use within our city as applicable.  Each BMP is cross 
referenced alphabetically by code to a fact sheet that describes the BMP, its 
applicability, its limitations, and its effectiveness in the indicated appendix. 
 
 

BMP Code Appendix 
Public Education/ Participation PEP C 

 
Goals 

In order to more fully realize the benefit of the BMP the city has set the following goals.  
The goals—along with existing efforts—fulfill the requirements of the Final Storm Water 
Phase II Rule for Public Involvement and Participation. 
 
The following table summarizes the goals for MCM 2. 
 
 

mailto:dschuler@clearfieldcity.org






                                                
                                              

Clearfield City Storm Water Management Plan 2016  
 

ILLICIT DISCHARGE DETECTION AND ELIMINATION 
 
Permit Requirements 
The permit requirements for Illicit Discharge Detection and Elimination on Storm Water 
Impacts can be found in Section 4.2.3 of the permit.  A copy of the permit is included in 
Appendix F for reference. The permit outlines in general the following requirements. 

1. Maintain a storm sewer system map of the MS4, showing the location of all 
outfalls and the names and location of all State waters that receive discharges 
from those outfalls. 

 
2. Through an ordinance, or other regulatory mechanism, a prohibition (to the 

extent allowable under State, or local law) on non-storm water discharges into 
the MS4, and appropriate enforcement procedures and actions. 

 
3. Develop and implement a plan to detect and address non-storm water 

discharges, including spills, illicit connections, and illegal dumping to the MS4. 
 

4. Develop and implement standard operating procedures (SOPs) for: 
 

a. Tracing the source of an illicit discharge.  
b. Characterizing the nature of, and the potential public or environmental 

threat posed by, any illicit discharges found or reported. 
c. Ceasing the illicit discharge, including notification of appropriate 

authorities, property owners, and technical assistance for removing the 
source and follow-up inspections. 

 
5. Inform public employees, businesses, and the general public about the hazards 

associated with illegal discharges and improper disposal of waste. 
 

6. Promote or provide services for the collection of household hazardous waste. 
 

7. Publicly list and publicize a hotline or other local number for public reporting of 
spills and other illicit discharges. 
 

8. Develop a written spill/dumping response procedure, and a flowchart for internal 
use, including various responsible agencies and their contacts. 
 

9. Adopt and implement procedures for program evaluation and assessment. 
 

10. Train employees, at a minimum, annually on the IDDE program. 
 

11. Notify State of industrial businesses not currently permitted or illicit discharge 
activity, housekeeping issues. 
 



                                                
                                              

Clearfield City Storm Water Management Plan 2016  
 

12. Develop written procedures for locating and listing priority areas likely to have 
illicit discharges.  

 
Summary of Existing Efforts 
Ordinances 
Clearfield City ordinances 9-3-8 and 9-3-9 are designed to specifically prohibit illicit 
discharges and/or dumping into the storm water system. For more information, see the 
ordinances in Appendix E.   
 
Illicit Spills 
Reports of spills are handled by Clearfield City (IDDE hotline numbers are posted on 
city web page), North Davis Fire District and Davis County Health Department, (MOU 
with Davis County Health and Davis County Cities for IDDE response) in Appendix C. 
 
Illicit Connections 
The City has not generally experienced problems with individuals or businesses illicitly 
connecting their sanitary waste water piping to storm drains.  More common types of 
illicit discharges include natural runoff from sites where former industrial businesses 
once stood, spills from highway accidents, concrete truck wash out water, residential 
yard waste and debris being washed into the gutters, and carpet cleaner waste.  There 
are several industrial businesses in town that are regulated by the state.  These 
businesses are a concern and listed as high priority. 
 
Compliance 
The City will make the necessary changes to the SWMP to be in compliance with the 
State’s updated permit. 
 
Mapping 
The City has a fairly comprehensive storm drain map showing the storm drain system 
and its points of discharge.  A copy of this map is included in Appendix G. 
 



                                                
                                              

Clearfield City Storm Water Management Plan 2016  
 

Plan and Implementation Measures 
In order to help meet the goals and objectives of this SWMP, Clearfield City has chosen 
to adopt the following BMPs for use within our city as applicable.  Each BMP is cross 
referenced alphabetically by code to a fact sheet that describes the BMP, its 
applicability, its limitations, and its effectiveness in the indicated appendix. 
 
 
 

BMP Code Appendix 
Community Hotline CH C 

Employee Training ET B,C 

Hazardous Waste Management HWM B,C 

Illegal Dumping Control IDC B,C 

Identify Illicit Connections IIC B,C 

Illegal Solids Dumping Controls ISDC B,C 

Map Storm Water Drains MSWD B,G 

Non-Storm Water Discharge to Drains NSWD B,C 

Ordinance Development OD E 

Public Education/ Participation PEP B,C 

Used Oil Recycling UOR B,C 
 
 
Goals 
In order to more fully realize the benefit of the BMP the city has set the following goals. 
The goals set along with the existing efforts fulfill the requirements of the Final Storm 
Water Phase II Rule for Illicit Discharge Detection and Elimination. 
 
The following table includes the goals for MCM 3. 
 







                                                
                                              

Clearfield City Storm Water Management Plan 2016  
 

Site Plan Review Process 
Clearfield City currently has a procedure requiring the submittal of construction 
drawings prior to approving a new development.   
   
Inspectors 
Clearfield City has one Registered Site Inspector (RSI) and is working to improve 
frequency and adequacy of construction site inspections. 
 
Standard Drawings and Specifications 
Clearfield City has a set of standard drawings and specifications for subdivision site 
development. 
 
Plan and Implementation Measures 
In order to help meet the goals and objectives of this SWMP, Clearfield City has chosen 
to adopt the following BMPs for use within our city as applicable.  Each BMP is cross 
referenced alphabetically by code to a fact sheet that describes the BMP, its 
applicability, its limitations, and its effectiveness in the indicated appendix. 
 
 
 

BMP Code Appendix 
Certification and Inspector Training CCIT A,B 

Erosion Control Plan ECP A,B 

Landscape and Irrigation Plan LIP A,B 

Ordinance Development OD A,B 

Zoning ZO A,B 

 
Goals 
In order to more fully realize the benefit of the BMP the city has set the following goals.  
The goals set along with the existing efforts fulfill the requirements of the Final Storm 
Water Phase II Rule for Construction Site Runoff Control. 
 
The following table includes the goals for MCM 4. 
 
 
 









                                                
                                              

Clearfield City Storm Water Management Plan 2016  
 

POST CONSTRUCTION RUNOFF CONTROL 
 
Permit Requirements 
The permit requirements for Post-Construction Runoff Control on Storm Water Impacts 
can be found in Section 4.2.5 of the permit.  A copy of the permit is included in 
Appendix F for reference. The permit outlines in general the following requirements 

1. Have an ordinance or other regulatory mechanism requiring the implementation 
of long-term post-construction storm water controls at new and redevelopment 
sites. 
 

2. Develop an enforcement strategy and implement enforcement provisions of the 
ordinance including escalating enforcement for recalcitrant violators. 
 

3. Develop requirements or standards for new development and redevelopment 
projects to include storm water controls or management practices that will 
prevent or minimize impacts to water quality, including: 
 

a. Non-structural BMPs 
b. Structural BMPs that focus on Low Impact Development which 

encourages infiltration, evapotranspiration or harvesting. 
c. If LID is not feasible document why and provide the rationale for 

alternative controls to be used 
d. Develop a retrofit plan for existing developed sites that are 

adversely impacting water quality. 
 

4. Define specific hydrologic method for calculating runoff and flow rates to be used 
to size structural BMPs and facilitate plan review. These methods shall include: 

a. Requirements to prevent the off-site discharge of the precipitation 
from all rainfall events less than or equal to the 90th percentile 
rainfall event. 

b. If retaining this event is infeasible, document why and provide 
alternative design criteria. 

 
5. Adopt and implement procedures for site plan review which incorporate 

consideration of water quality impacts These procedures shall include:. 
a. Reviewing plans to ensure that they include long-term storm water 

management measures that meet the requirements 
b. Providing developers and contractors with preferred design 

specifications to more effectively treat storm water 
 

6. Develop, adopt and implement Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs) for site 
inspection and enforcement of post-construction storm water control measures. 
These procedures must ensure adequate ongoing long-term operation and 
maintenance by including: 

a. A requirement for annual inspections of all long-term BMPs 



                                                
                                              

Clearfield City Storm Water Management Plan 2016  
 

b. Maintenance agreements addressing maintenance requirements 
for any control measures 

c. Allowing the MS4 to conduct oversight inspections 
d. Inspection of long-term BMPs during construction to ensure they 

get constructed properly 
 

7. Provide adequate training for staff concerning post-construction storm water 
management, plan review, inspections and enforcement. 
 

8. Maintain an inventory of all post-construction structural storm water control 
measures. This includes public and private facilities. 

 
Summary of Existing Efforts 
Ordinances 
Clearfield City has an ordinance allowing a maximum storm water discharge rate for 
new development.  No other ordinances currently address runoff from construction sites 
or new development.   
  
Landscaping Plans 
Developers are required to present a plan outlining landscaping plans to the City.  
 
Plan and Implementation Measures 
In order to help meet the goals and objectives of this SWMP, Clearfield City has chosen 
to adopt the following BMPs for use within our city as applicable.  Each BMP is cross 
referenced alphabetically by code to a fact sheet that describes the BMP, its 
applicability, its limitations, and its effectiveness in the indicated appendix. 
 

BMP Code Appendix 
BMP Inspection and Maintenance BMPIM A,B 

Educational Materials EM A,B 

Infrastructure Planning IPL A,B 

Landscape and Irrigation Plan LIP A,B 

Ordinance Development OD A,B 

LID BMPs will be added in the next few months.   

Goals 
In order to more fully realize the benefit of the BMP the city has set the following goals. 
The goals set along with the existing efforts fulfill the requirements of the Final Storm 
Water Phase II Rule for Post Construction Runoff Control. 
The following table includes the goals for MCM 5. 







                                                
                                              

Clearfield City Storm Water Management Plan 2016  
 

POLLUTION PREVENTION / GOOD HOUSEKEEPING 
 
Permit Requirements 
The permit requirements for Pollution Prevention and Good Housekeeping on Storm 
Water Impacts can be found in Section 4.2.6 of the permit.  A copy of the permit is 
included in Appendix F for reference. The permit outlines in general the following 
requirements 

1. Develop and implement an operation and maintenance program for city-owned or 
operated facilities. 

 
2. Maintain an inventory of city-owned or operated facilities and storm water 

controls. Assess said list for their potential to discharge typical urban pollutants to 
the storm water system. 
 

3. Identify ‘high-priority’ facilities or operations that have a high potential to generate 
storm water pollutants. Included with Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs) 
specific to municipal operations. The SOPs shall include appropriate pollution 
prevention and good housekeeping procedures for all of the following types of 
facilities and/or activities listed below: 
 

a. Buildings and facilities 
b. Material storage areas, heavy equipment storage areas and 

maintenance areas 
c. Parks and open spaces 
d. Vehicle and equipment 
e. Roads, highways, and parking lots 
f. Storm water collection and conveyance system 
g. Other facilities and operations (those not listed, but would 

reasonably be expected to discharge contaminated runoff)  
 

4. Develop and implement a SWPPP for all “high priority” facilities 
5. Conduct inspections of “high priority” facilities 

a. Weekly visual inspections 
b. Quarterly comprehensive inspections 
c. Quarterly visual observation of storm water discharges 

6. Develop and implement SOPs for the following types of facilities and/or activities 
a. Buildings and facilities 
b. Material and equipment storage areas 
c. Parks and open space 
d. Vehicles and equipment 
e. Roads, highways and parking lots 
f. Storm water collection and conveyance systems 
g. Other facilities and operations 



                                                
                                              

Clearfield City Storm Water Management Plan 2016  
 

7. If a third-party is to conduct municipal maintenance or private developments 
conduct their own maintenance, the contractor shall be held to the same 
standard as the City. This should be outlined and defined in contracts. 
 

8. Develop and implement a process to assess the water quality impacts in the 
design of all new flood management structural controls that are associated with 
the MS4. 
 

9. City construction projects shall comply with the requirements applied to private 
projects. 
 

10. Include annual employee training on how to incorporate pollution prevention and 
good housekeeping techniques into municipal operations, including SOPs. 

 
Summary of Existing Efforts 
Existing Maintenance Program 
Clearfield City currently maintains inlet boxes and other MS4 improvements on an as-
needed basis. Streets and gutters are swept as-needed. The city started a storm drain 
cleaning program this last year (2015) and has gone through a 1/3 of the city’s inlet 
boxes and storm drain lines.  
 
Plan and Implementation Measures 
In order to help meet the goals and objectives of this SWMP, Clearfield City has chosen 
to adopt the following BMPs for use within our city as applicable.  Each BMP is cross 
referenced alphabetically by code to a fact sheet that describes the BMP, its 
applicability, its limitations, and its effectiveness in the indicated appendix. 
 

BMP Code Appendix 
Employee Training ET A,B 

Housekeeping Practices HP A,B 

Infrastructure Planning IPL A,B 
 
Goals 
In order to more fully realize the benefit of the BMP the city has set the following goals.  
The goals set along with the existing efforts fulfill the requirements of the Final Storm 
Water Phase II Rule for Pollution Prevention/Good Housekeeping. 
 
The following table includes the goals for MCM 6. 
 
 
 















Expenditure Notes
FY17 

Division: 535301           STORM SEWER              

Account Budget Notes Expense
611201   OVERTIME                 OVERTIME 1 EMPLOYEE                                    $3,000

611201   OVERTIME                 $3,000

614101   CLOTHING ALLOW - FT      EVERYDAY USE CLOTHING 2 EMPLOYEE                       $720

PT-STREET SWEEPER                                      $180

614101   CLOTHING ALLOW - FT      $900

621101   BOOKS & SUBSCRIPTIONS    MANUALS                                                $100

621101   BOOKS & SUBSCRIPTIONS    $100

621301   TRAINING & REGISTRATION F FLOOD PLAIN MANAGEMENT  CONFERENCE ST. GEORGE          $200

MISC. STORM WATER TRAINING                             $200

STATE STORM WATER CONFERENCE  SANDY CITY               $200

621301   TRAINING & REGISTRATION F $600

623101   IN-STATE LODGING         FLOOD PLAIN MANAGEMENT 3 NIGHTS @ $110                 $330

623101   IN-STATE LODGING         $330

623102   IN-STATE MEALS           FLOOD PLAIN MANAGEMENT ST. GEORGE 3 DAYS @ $51.00      $153

623102   IN-STATE MEALS           $153

623103   IN-STATE TRANSPORTATION  FLOOD PLAIN MANAGEMENT ST. GEORGE                      $125

623103   IN-STATE TRANSPORTATION  $125

624001   OFFICE SUPPLIES          OFFICE FURNITURE AND SUPPLIES FOR ENGINEER             $500

STORM WATER OFFICE SUPPLIES                            $500

624001   OFFICE SUPPLIES          $1,000

624004   MATERIALS & SUPPLIES     HAND TOOLS                                             $400

REPLACEMENT GRATES                                     $2,000

624004   MATERIALS & SUPPLIES     $2,400

624107   UNIFORMS                 STLTOE&RBBR BOOTS,GLASSES,VESTS,OVERALLS,GLOVES,EA     $950

624107   UNIFORMS                 $950

625001   EQUIP. MAINT. & SUPPLIES BLUE STAKE PAINT FOR STORM DRAINS                      $400

ILLICIT DISCHARGE CLEANUP SUPPLIES                     $700

PAPER PRODUCTS, HAND TOWELS ETC.                       $400

625001   EQUIP. MAINT. & SUPPLIES $1,500

625201   TIRES/BRAKES             TIRES & BRAKES                                         $1,000

625201   TIRES/BRAKES             $1,000

625202   FUEL/OIL                 STORM WATER VEHICLE FUEL & OIL                         $5,500

625202   FUEL/OIL                 $5,500

625203   FLEET REPAIR             FLEET REPAIRS                                          $10,000

625203   FLEET REPAIR             $10,000

625204   FLEET LEASE              FLEET LEASE                                            $8,221

625204   FLEET LEASE              $8,221

631003   INSURANCE FEES           LIABILITY I NSURANCE                                   $7,940

631003   INSURANCE FEES           $7,940

631004   BANK FEES                CREDIT CARD FEES                                       $4,400

EXPRESS BILL PAY FEES                                  $800

631004   BANK FEES                $5,200

Jun 10, 2016  - 92 - 1:44:10 PM



Expenditure Notes
FY17 

Division: 535301           STORM SEWER              

Account Budget Notes Expense
631006   CONTRACTED SERVICES      ACCENA MS4 REPORTS                                     $1,500

CLEANING & INSPECTION STORM DRAINS                     $50,000

631006   CONTRACTED SERVICES      $51,500

645001   SPECIAL DEPARTMENT ALLOW COUNTY COALITION BMP PROGRAM                           $6,000

STATE STORM WATER PERMIT                               $1,200

645001   SPECIAL DEPARTMENT ALLOW $7,200

651501   DEPRECIATION             BASED ON FY15 ACTUALS                                  $665,000

651501   DEPRECIATION             $665,000

651502   BAD DEBT EXPENSE         $250

651502   BAD DEBT EXPENSE         $250

662001   MISCELLANEOUS SERVICES   1/3 FLOOR MAT SERVICE                                  $500

662001   MISCELLANEOUS SERVICES   $500

663001   CONTINGENCY FUND         STORM DRAIN REPAIRS                                    $5,000

663001   CONTINGENCY FUND         $5,000

674001   MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT    VAC MACHINE W/ TRAILER                                 $38,000

674001   MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT    $38,000

674003   VEHICLE REPLACEMENT      FLEET 1 F-250 XLT 4X4 @$2,000  25% GENERAL FUND        $500

674003   VEHICLE REPLACEMENT      $500

691001   TRNF OTHER FUNDS         7% GO BOND PAYMENT                                     $25,168

691001   TRNF OTHER FUNDS         $25,168

691005   TRNF EF                  26% UTILITY ADMINISTRATION 50                          $60,295

691005   TRNF EF                  $60,295

691009   TRNF INDIRECT COST ALLOCA GF ENTERPRISE EXPENSES                                 $225,916

691009   TRNF INDIRECT COST ALLOCA $225,916

535301           STORM SEWER              $1,128,248

Jun 10, 2016  - 93 - 1:44:10 PM



Expenditure Notes
FY17 

Division: 535310           STORM SEWER CAPITAL PRJCT

Account Budget Notes Expense
673001   CP -  PROJECT            0186STRM- 350 W, 2300 S TO 2225 S - CDBG (FY16)        $150,000

187STRM- MAINT & OP CENTER - PH 2 - CONSTR             $780,000

187STRM- MAINT & OP CENTER - PH 2 - DESIGN             $40,000

200STRM- 700S, 1000W TO 1500W $1.2M STR, W, STRM       $310,000

205STRM- FREEPORT "H" STREET, 3RD ST TO 5TH ST         $300,000

210STRM- SOFTWARE REPLACE 40% ENTERPRISE $400K TOTAL   $40,000

220STRM- 1450S STATE ST TO 1000 E (FY16)               $175,600

PW0147- 400E, 700S TO 1250S GUNDERSON 24" (FY16)       $300,000

673001   CP -  PROJECT            $2,095,600

535310           STORM SEWER CAPITAL PRJCT $2,095,600

Jun 10, 2016  - 94 - 1:44:10 PM
















































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































	A071216Electronic
	Davis Schools Resource Officer Interlocal
	052416wminutes
	053116wminutes
	062816minutes
	Clearfield City SWMP 2016_Final
	Appendix A
	Appendix B
	Appendix C
	Appendix D
	Appendix E
	Appendix F
	Appendix G



